

THE NINETY-SIXTH DAY

CARSON CITY (Friday), May 10, 2019

Senate called to order at 12:34 p.m.

President Marshall presiding.

Roll called.

All present except Senators Harris and Pickard, who were excused.

Prayer by the Chaplain, Pastor Louis Locke.

Let us pray. Father God, we come to You in the Name of Your Son, Jesus, thanking You for Your grace and mercy in our lives. We ask for Your continued wisdom to help shape good legislation to benefit the lives of those we serve.

We also ask that You, O Lord, bless the men and women of this Senate, their families and staff with good health and a restful weekend.

In the Name of the Most High God, I pray.

AMEN.

Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag.

By previous order of the Senate, the reading of the Journal is dispensed with, and the President and Secretary are authorized to make the necessary corrections and additions.

REPORTS OF COMMITTEE

Madam President:

Your Committee on Health and Human Services, to which was referred Assembly Bill No. 164, has had the same under consideration, and begs leave to report the same back with the recommendation: Amend, and do pass as amended.

JULIA RATTI, *Chair*

Madam President:

Your Committee on Natural Resources, to which were referred Assembly Bill No. 95; Assembly Joint Resolution No. 8, has had the same under consideration, and begs leave to report the same back with the recommendation: Do pass.

MELANIE SCHEIBLE, *Chair*

MESSAGES FROM THE ASSEMBLY

ASSEMBLY CHAMBER, Carson City, May 9, 2019

To the Honorable the Senate:

I have the honor to inform your honorable body that the Assembly on this day passed Senate Bills Nos. 17, 18, 55, 85, 92, 184, 232, 284, 454.

Also, I have the honor to inform your honorable body that the Assembly on this day passed, as amended, Assembly Bill No. 508.

Also, I have the honor to inform your honorable body that the Assembly amended, and on this day passed, as amended, Senate Bill No. 46, Amendment No. 653, and respectfully requests your honorable body to concur in said amendment.

Also, I have the honor to inform your honorable body that the Assembly on this day concurred in the Senate Amendment No. 659 to Assembly Bill No. 131.

CAROL AIELLO-SALA

Assistant Chief Clerk of the Assembly

MOTIONS, RESOLUTIONS AND NOTICES

Senator Spearman moved that Assembly Bill No. 457 be taken from the General File and placed on the Secretary's desk.

Motion carried.

Senator Ratti moved that Senate Bill No. 94; Assembly Bills Nos. 28, 52, 58, 59, 93, 126, 333; Assembly Joint Resolutions Nos. 3, 7 be taken from the General File and placed on the General File for the next legislative day.

Motion carried.

INTRODUCTION, FIRST READING AND REFERENCE

By the Committee on Finance:

Senate Bill No. 541—AN ACT relating to the governmental services tax; revising provisions governing the allocation of a portion of the proceeds of the basic governmental services tax; and providing other matters properly relating thereto.

Senator Woodhouse moved that the bill be referred to the Committee on Finance.

Motion carried.

By the Committee on Finance:

Senate Bill No. 542—AN ACT relating to technology fees; extending the imposition of a technology fee on certain transactions by the Department of Motor Vehicles; and providing other matters properly relating thereto.

Senator Woodhouse moved that the bill be referred to the Committee on Finance.

Motion carried.

Assembly Bill No. 508.

Senator Ratti moved that the bill be referred to the Committee on Finance.

Motion carried.

SECOND READING AND AMENDMENT

Assembly Bill No. 25.

Bill read second time.

The following amendment was proposed by the Committee on Commerce and Labor:

Amendment No. 660.

SUMMARY—Makes various changes to provisions governing contractors. (BDR 54-234)

AN ACT relating to contractors; authorizing the State Contractors' Board to delegate to a hearing officer or panel its authority to hold certain hearings; expanding the period during which an applicant for licensure as a contractor must have received certain experience before applying for licensure; repealing provisions which require an applicant for renewal of a contractor's license who will engage in residential construction to submit certain financial information to the Board; expanding the period during which a license may be placed on inactive status; authorizing a licensee who was on active duty in the Armed

Forces of the United States, a reserve component thereof or the National Guard to apply to have his or her contractor's license reinstated under certain circumstances; repealing provisions which prohibit a telephone number to a provider of paging services used in certain unlawful advertising from being disconnected; and providing other matters properly relating thereto.

Legislative Counsel's Digest:

Under existing law, if the State Contractors' Board denies an application for issuance or renewal of a contractor's license, the applicant for the license may submit a written request to the Board for a hearing concerning the denial of the application. If the applicant submits a written request, the Board is required to hold a hearing. (NRS 624.2545) Section 1 of this bill: (1) authorizes the Board to delegate to a hearing officer or panel its authority to hold a hearing concerning the denial of the license; and (2) requires the Board to adopt regulations setting forth the qualifications for a hearing officer.

Under existing law, an applicant for a contractor's license or a licensee must show such experience, financial responsibility and general knowledge of the building, safety, health and lien laws of the State of Nevada as are required by the Board. In addition, each applicant for licensure as a contractor is required to have acquired at least 4 years of experience as a journeyman, foreman, supervising employee or contractor within the 10 years immediately preceding the date of filing of the application. (NRS 624.260) Section 2 of this bill increases the 10-year requirement to 15 years.

Under existing law, if an applicant for a contractor's license will engage in residential construction and the applicant has not held a contractor's license within the 2 years immediately preceding the date the application is submitted to the Board, the applicant is required to establish his or her financial responsibility by submitting a financial statement and other information to the Board. If the Board issues a contractor's license to the applicant, the applicant is required, for the first 2 years after the issuance of the license, to submit with each application for the renewal of his or her license a financial statement and other information to the Board. (NRS 624.264) Section 3 of this bill repeals the requirement for the submission of a financial statement and other information with each application for the renewal of the license.

Under existing law, if a contractor's license is placed on inactive status, the license may remain on inactive status for 5 years. (NRS 624.282) Section 4 of this bill increases the 5-year limitation on the inactive status of the license to 8 years.

Under existing law, each contractor's license expires 2 years after the date on which it was issued or on another date established by regulations of the Board. A license which is not renewed before the date for the renewal of the license is automatically suspended. (NRS 624.283) Section 5 of this bill: (1) authorizes a licensee whose license is automatically suspended while he or she was on active duty in the Armed Forces of the United States, a reserve component thereof or the National Guard to submit an application to the Board requesting the reinstatement of his or her license without the imposition of a

penalty or disciplinary action; (2) sets forth the requirements for the Board to reinstate the license; and (3) authorizes the Board to waive the fee for renewal of the license.

Under existing law, it is unlawful for a person to advertise as a contractor unless the person has a contractor's license in the appropriate classification for the license. If the Board determines that a person violated the prohibition against unlawful advertising, the Board may, in addition to taking certain other actions, cause any telephone number included in the advertising to be disconnected, other than a telephone number to a provider of paging services. Section 6 of this bill repeals the provisions which prohibit the Board from causing the telephone number of a provider of paging services to be disconnected.

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF NEVADA, REPRESENTED IN
SENATE AND ASSEMBLY, DO ENACT AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. NRS 624.2545 is hereby amended to read as follows:

624.2545 1. If the Board denies an application for issuance or renewal of a license pursuant to this chapter, the Board shall send by certified mail, return receipt requested, written notice of the denial to the most current address of the applicant set forth in the records of the Board.

2. A notice of denial must include, without limitation, a statement which explains that the applicant has a right to a hearing before the Board if the applicant submits a written request for such a hearing to the Board within 60 days after the notice of denial is sent to the address of the applicant pursuant to this section.

3. If an applicant who receives a notice of denial pursuant to this section desires to have the denial reviewed at a hearing before the Board, the applicant must submit a written request for a hearing before the Board concerning the denial within 60 days after the notice of denial is sent to the applicant's address. If an applicant does not submit notice in accordance with this subsection, the applicant's right to a hearing shall be deemed to be waived.

4. Except as otherwise provided in this subsection, if the Board receives notice from an applicant pursuant to subsection 3, the Board shall hold a hearing on the decision to deny the application of the applicant within 90 days after the date the Board receives notice pursuant to subsection 3. If an applicant requests a continuance and the Board grants the continuance, the hearing required pursuant to this subsection may be held more than 90 days after the date the Board receives notice pursuant to subsection 3. *The Board may delegate to a hearing officer or panel its authority to hold a hearing concerning the denial of an application pursuant to this section. The Board shall adopt regulations setting forth the qualifications for a hearing officer.*

Sec. 2. NRS 624.260 is hereby amended to read as follows:

624.260 1. The Board shall require an applicant or licensee to show such a degree of experience, financial responsibility and such general knowledge of the building, safety, health and lien laws of the State of Nevada and the

administrative principles of the contracting business as the Board deems necessary for the safety and protection of the public.

2. An applicant or licensee may qualify in regard to his or her experience and knowledge in the following ways:

(a) If a natural person, the applicant or licensee may qualify by personal appearance or by the appearance of his or her responsible managing employee.

(b) If a copartnership, a corporation or any other combination or organization, it may qualify by the appearance of the responsible managing officer or member of the personnel of the applicant firm.

↪ If an applicant or licensee intends to qualify pursuant to this subsection by the appearance of another person, the applicant or licensee shall submit to the Board such information as the Board determines is necessary to demonstrate the duties and responsibilities of the other person so appearing with respect to the supervision and control of the operations of the applicant or licensee relating to construction.

3. The natural person qualifying on behalf of another natural person or firm under paragraphs (a) and (b) of subsection 2 must prove that he or she is a bona fide member or employee of that person or firm and when his or her principal or employer is actively engaged as a contractor shall exercise authority in connection with the principal or employer's contracting business in the following manner:

(a) To make technical and administrative decisions;

(b) To hire, superintend, promote, transfer, lay off, discipline or discharge other employees and to direct them, either by himself or herself or through others, or effectively to recommend such action on behalf of the principal or employer; and

(c) To devote himself or herself solely to the principal or employer's business and not to take any other employment which would conflict with his or her duties under this subsection.

4. If, pursuant to subsection 2, an applicant or licensee intends to qualify by the appearance of another person, the Board may inquire into and consider any previous business experience of, and any prior and pending lawsuits, liens and judgments against, the other person.

5. A natural person may not qualify on behalf of another for more than one active license unless:

(a) One person owns at least 25 percent of each licensee for which the person qualifies;

(b) One licensee owns at least 25 percent of the other licensee; or

(c) One licensee is a corporation for public benefit as defined in NRS 82.021.

6. Except as otherwise provided in subsection 7, in addition to the other requirements set forth in this section, each applicant for licensure as a contractor must have had, within the ~~10~~ 15 years immediately preceding the filing of the application for licensure, at least 4 years of experience as a journeyman, foreman, supervising employee or contractor in the specific

classification in which the applicant is applying for licensure. Training received in a program offered at an accredited college or university or an equivalent program accepted by the Board may be used to satisfy not more than 3 years of experience required pursuant to this subsection.

7. If the applicant who is applying for licensure has previously qualified for a contractor's license in the same classification in which the applicant is applying for licensure, the experience required pursuant to subsection 6 need not be accrued within the ~~10~~ 15 years immediately preceding the application.

8. As used in this section, "journeyman" means a person who:

(a) Is fully qualified to perform, without supervision, work in the classification in which the person is applying for licensure; or

(b) Has successfully completed:

(1) A program of apprenticeship for the classification in which the person is applying for licensure that has been approved by the State Apprenticeship Council; or

(2) An equivalent program accepted by the Board.

Sec. 3. NRS 624.264 is hereby amended to read as follows:

624.264 1. In addition to any other requirements set forth in this chapter, if an applicant will engage in residential construction and the applicant or the natural person qualifying on behalf of the applicant pursuant to NRS 624.260 has not held a contractor's license issued pursuant to this chapter within the 2 years immediately preceding the date that the application is submitted to the Board, the Board shall require the applicant to establish financial responsibility by submitting to the Board:

(a) A financial statement that is:

(1) Prepared by an independent certified public accountant; or

(2) Submitted on a form or in a format prescribed by the Board together with an affidavit which verifies the accuracy of the financial statement; and

(b) Any other information required by the Board.

2. Before the Board may issue a contractor's license to the applicant, the Board must determine whether, based on the financial information concerning the applicant, it would be in the public interest to do any or all of the following:

(a) Require the applicant to obtain the services of a construction control with respect to any money that the applicant requires a purchaser of a new residence to pay in advance to make upgrades to the new residence. If the Board imposes such a requirement, the applicant may not:

(1) Be related to the construction control or to an employee or agent of the construction control; or

(2) Hold, directly or indirectly, a financial interest in the business of the construction control.

(b) Establish an aggregate monetary limit on the contractor's license, which must be the maximum combined monetary limit on all contracts that the applicant may undertake or perform as a licensed contractor at any one time, regardless of the number of contracts, construction sites, subdivision sites or clients. If the Board establishes such a limit, the Board:

(1) Shall determine the period that the limit is in effect; and

(2) During that period, may increase or decrease the limit as the Board deems appropriate.

~~{3.— If the Board issues a contractor's license to an applicant described in subsection 1, for the first 2 years after the issuance of the license, the licensee must submit to the Board, with each application for renewal of the license:~~

~~—(a) A financial statement that is:~~

~~—(1) Prepared by an independent certified public accountant; or~~

~~—(2) Submitted on a form or in a format prescribed by the Board together with an affidavit which verifies the accuracy of the financial statement; and~~

~~—(b) A statement setting forth the number of building permits issued to and construction projects completed by the licensee during the immediately preceding year and any other information required by the Board. The statement submitted pursuant to this paragraph must be provided on a form approved by the Board.~~

~~—4.— Before the Board may renew the contractor's license of the licensee, the Board must determine whether, based on the financial information concerning the licensee, it would be in the public interest to do any or all of the following:~~

~~—(a) Require the licensee to obtain the services of a construction control with respect to any money that the licensee requires a purchaser of a new residence to pay in advance to make upgrades to the new residence. If the Board imposes such a requirement, the licensee may not:~~

~~—(1) Be related to the construction control or to an employee or agent of the construction control; or~~

~~—(2) Hold, directly or indirectly, a financial interest in the business of the construction control.~~

~~—(b) Establish an aggregate monetary limit on the contractor's license, which must be the maximum combined monetary limit on all contracts that the licensee may undertake or perform as a licensed contractor at any one time, regardless of the number of contracts, construction sites, subdivision sites or clients. If the Board establishes such a limit, the Board:~~

~~—(1) Shall determine the period that the limit is in effect; and~~

~~—(2) During that period, may increase or decrease the limit as the Board deems appropriate.]~~

Sec. 4. NRS 624.282 is hereby amended to read as follows:

624.282 1. A contractor may apply to the Board to have his or her license placed on inactive status. The Board may grant the application if the license is in good standing and the licensee has met all requirements for the issuance or renewal of a contractor's license as of the date of the application.

2. If the application is granted, the licensee shall not engage in any work or activities that require a contractor's license in this State unless the licensee is returned to active status.

3. A person whose license has been placed on inactive status pursuant to this section is exempt from:

(a) The requirement to execute and maintain a bond pursuant to NRS 624.270; and

(b) The requirement to qualify in regard to his or her experience and knowledge pursuant to NRS 624.260.

4. The inactive status of a license is valid for ~~{5}~~ 8 years after the date that the inactive status is granted.

5. The Board shall not refund any portion of the renewal fee of a contractor's license that was paid before the license was placed on inactive status.

6. The Board shall adopt regulations prescribing the:

(a) Procedures for making an application pursuant to this section;

(b) Procedures and terms upon which a person whose license has been placed on inactive status may resume work or activities that require a contractor's license; and

(c) Fees for the renewal of the inactive status of a license.

Sec. 5. NRS 624.283 is hereby amended to read as follows:

624.283 1. Each license issued under the provisions of this chapter expires 2 years after the date on which it is issued, except that the Board may by regulation prescribe shorter or longer periods and prorated fees to establish a system of staggered biennial renewals. Any license which is not renewed on or before the date for renewal is automatically suspended.

2. ~~{A}~~ *Except as otherwise provided in subsection 5, a license may be renewed by submitting to the Board:*

(a) An application for renewal;

(b) The fee for renewal fixed by the Board;

(c) Any assessment required pursuant to NRS 624.470 if the holder of the license is a residential contractor as defined in NRS 624.450; and

(d) All information required to complete the renewal.

3. The Board may require a licensee to demonstrate financial responsibility at any time through the submission of:

(a) A financial statement that is:

(1) Prepared by an independent certified public accountant; or

(2) Submitted on a form or in a format prescribed by the Board together with an affidavit which verifies the accuracy of the financial statement; and

(b) If the licensee performs residential construction, such additional documentation as the Board deems appropriate.

4. ~~{H}~~ *Except as otherwise provided in subsection 5, if a license is automatically suspended pursuant to subsection 1, the licensee may have the license reinstated upon filing an application for renewal within 6 months after the date of suspension and paying, in addition to the fee for renewal, a fee for reinstatement fixed by the Board, if the licensee is otherwise in good standing and there are no complaints pending against the licensee. If the licensee is otherwise not in good standing or there is a complaint pending, the Board shall require the licensee to provide a current financial statement prepared by an independent certified public accountant or establish other conditions for*

reinstatement. An application for renewal must be accompanied by all information required to complete the renewal. A license which is not reinstated within 6 months after it is automatically suspended may be cancelled by the Board, and a new license may be issued only upon application for an original contractor's license.

5. *If a license is automatically suspended pursuant to subsection 1 while the licensee was on active duty as a member of the Armed Forces of the United States, a reserve component thereof or the National Guard, the licensee may submit an application to the Board requesting the reinstatement of his or her license without the imposition of any penalty, punishment or disciplinary action authorized by the provisions of this chapter. The Board may reinstate the license if:*

~~(a) The license was valid at the time the licensee became a member of the Armed Forces of the United States, a reserve component thereof or the National Guard;~~

~~(b) The application for reinstatement is submitted while the licensee is serving in the Armed Forces of the United States, a reserve component thereof or the National Guard; and~~

~~(c) (b) Except as otherwise provided in subsection 6, the application for reinstatement is accompanied by an affidavit setting forth the dates of service of the licensee and the fee for renewal fixed by the Board pursuant to subsection 2.~~

6. *The Board may waive the fee for renewal of a license for a licensee specified in subsection 5 if:*

(a) The license was valid at the time the licensee was called to active duty in the Armed Forces of the United States, a reserve component thereof or the National Guard; and

(b) The licensee provides written documentation satisfactory to the Board substantiating his or her claim of service on active duty in the Armed Forces of the United States, a reserve component thereof or the National Guard.

Sec. 6. NRS 624.720 is hereby amended to read as follows:

624.720 1. It is unlawful for any person, including a person exempt under the provisions of NRS 624.031, to advertise as a contractor unless the person has a license in the appropriate classification established by the provisions of NRS 624.215 and 624.220.

2. Notwithstanding any other provision of this chapter, any person not licensed pursuant to the provisions of this chapter who advertises to perform or complete construction work or a work of improvement must state in the advertisement that he or she is not licensed pursuant to this chapter.

3. It is unlawful for a licensed contractor to disseminate, as part of any advertising by the contractor, any false or misleading statement or representation of material fact that is intended, directly or indirectly, to induce another person to use the services of the contractor or to enter into any contract with the contractor or any obligation relating to such a contract.

4. All advertising by a licensed contractor must include the name of the contractor's company and the number of the contractor's license.

5. It is unlawful for any person, whether or not licensed pursuant to this chapter, to advertise to perform or complete construction work or a work of improvement using a license number that does not correspond to a valid license issued to that person under this chapter.

6. If, after giving notice and holding a hearing pursuant to NRS 624.291, the Board determines that a person has engaged in advertising in a manner that violates the provisions of this section, the Board may, in addition to any penalty, punishment or disciplinary action authorized by the provisions of this chapter, issue an order to the person to cease and desist the unlawful advertising and to ~~to~~:

~~—(a) Cause any telephone number included in the advertising [other than a telephone number to a provider of paging services,] to be disconnected.~~

~~[(b) Request the provider of paging services to change the number of any beeper which is included in the advertising or disconnect the paging services to such a beeper, and to inform the provider of paging services that the request is made pursuant to this section.]~~

7. If a person fails to comply with ~~[paragraph (a) of]~~ subsection 6 within 5 days after receiving an order pursuant to subsection 6, the Board may request the Public Utilities Commission of Nevada to order the appropriate provider of telephone service to disconnect any telephone number included in the advertisement . ~~[, except for a telephone number to a provider of paging services. If a person fails to comply with paragraph (b) of subsection 6 within 5 days after receiving an order pursuant to subsection 6, the Board may request the provider of paging services to switch the beeper number or disconnect the paging services provided to the person, whichever the provider deems appropriate.~~

~~—8. If the provider of paging services receives a request from a person pursuant to subsection 6 or a request from the Board pursuant to subsection 7, it shall:~~

~~—(a) Disconnect the paging service to the person; or~~

~~—(b) Switch the beeper number of the paging service provided to the person.~~

~~→ If the provider of paging services elects to switch the number pursuant to paragraph (b), it shall not forward or offer to forward the paging calls from the previous number, or provide or offer to provide a recorded message that includes the new beeper number.~~

~~—9.]~~ 8. As used in this section:

(a) "Advertising" includes, but is not limited to, the issuance of any sign, card or device, or the permitting or allowing of any sign or marking on a motor vehicle, in any building, structure, newspaper, magazine or airway transmission, on the Internet or in any directory under the listing of "contractor" with or without any limiting qualifications.

(b) ~~["Beeper" means a portable electronic device which is used to page the person carrying it by emitting an audible or a vibrating signal when the device receives a special radio signal.~~

~~—(c) "Provider of paging services" means an entity, other than a public utility, that provides paging service to a beeper.~~

~~—(d) "Provider of telephone service" has the meaning ascribed to it in NRS 707.355.~~

Sec. 7. Notwithstanding the amendatory provisions of section 4 of this act, if the State Contractors' Board, before October 1, 2019, places the license of a contractor on inactive status pursuant to NRS 624.282, as amended by section 4 of this act, the license shall be deemed to be inactive for 8 years after the date the inactive status of the license is granted, unless otherwise provided by the Board.

Sec. 8. This act becomes effective:

1. Upon passage and approval for the purposes of adopting regulations and any other preparatory administrative tasks that are necessary to carry out the provisions of this act; and

2. On October 1, 2019, for all other purposes.

Senator Spearman moved the adoption of the amendment.

Remarks by Senator Spearman.

Amendment No. 660 makes one change to Assembly Bill No. 25. The amendment deletes subsection 5(a) of section 5 to clarify that a current member of the Armed Forces, its reserves or the National Guard may apply to the State Contractors' Board for reinstatement of an automatically suspended license without penalty if the automatic suspension occurred while the licensee was on active duty.

Amendment adopted.

Bill ordered reprinted, re-engrossed and to third reading.

Assembly Bill No. 122.

Bill read second time and ordered to third reading.

Assembly Bill No. 258.

Bill read second time and ordered to third reading.

Assembly Bill No. 365.

Bill read second time.

The following amendment was proposed by the Committee on Growth and Infrastructure:

Amendment No. 657.

SUMMARY—Revises provisions governing certain motor vehicle rentals. (BDR 43-695)

AN ACT relating to short-term lessors of vehicles; revising the maximum allowable charge for a waiver of damages offered by a short-term lessor of vehicles; and providing other matters properly relating thereto.

Legislative Counsel's Digest:

Under existing law, a short-term lessor of vehicles may offer to a lessee, but must not require, the purchase of a waiver of damages or optional insurance. (NRS 482.31565) Such a lessor may not charge more than \$22 per full or partial rental day for such a waiver, except that the maximum amount is adjusted each fiscal year in an amount calculated based on a certain Consumer Price Index for the preceding year.

Section 1 of this bill maintains the existing cap of \$22, as adjusted, for a vehicle that has a manufacturer's suggested retail price of not more than \$60,000, and adds a new cap of \$150 ~~[, to be adjusted annually starting on July 1, 2021,]~~ for a vehicle that has a manufacturer's suggested retail price of more than \$60,000. Section 1 also provides for both the amount of the charge and the threshold amount of the manufacturer's suggested retail price to be adjusted each fiscal year starting on July 1, 2021, in an amount calculated based on the same Consumer Price Index for the preceding year.

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF NEVADA, REPRESENTED IN
SENATE AND ASSEMBLY, DO ENACT AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. NRS 482.31565 is hereby amended to read as follows:

482.31565 1. A short-term lessor shall not require the purchase of a waiver of damages, optional insurance or any other optional good or service as a condition for the lease of a passenger car.

2. Except as otherwise provided in this subsection, a short-term lessor may sell a waiver of damages but shall ~~[not]~~ charge ~~;~~ ~~[more than, for a vehicle with a manufacturer's suggested retail price:]~~

(a) ~~[Of not more than \$60,000,]~~ Except as otherwise provided in paragraph (b), not more than \$22 per full or partial rental day or 24-hour rental period, as appropriate, for the waiver. The ~~[monetary]~~ amount of the charge set forth in this ~~[subsection]~~ paragraph must be adjusted for each fiscal year that begins on or after July 1, 2008, by adding to ~~that [each]~~ amount the product of that amount multiplied by the percentage increase in the Consumer Price Index West Urban for All Urban Consumers (All Items) between the calendar year ending on December 31, 2005, and the calendar year immediately preceding the fiscal year for which the adjustment is made. The Department shall, on or before March 1 of each year, publish the adjusted amount ~~[amounts]~~ for the next fiscal year on its website or otherwise make that information available to short-term lessors.

(b) ~~[That is]~~ If the vehicle has a manufacturer's suggested retail price of more than \$60,000, not more than \$150 per full or partial rental day or 24-hour rental period, as appropriate, for the waiver. The ~~[amount of the charge]~~ monetary amounts set forth in this paragraph must be adjusted for each fiscal year that begins on or after July 1, 2021, by adding to each amount the product of that amount multiplied by the percentage increase in the Consumer Price Index West Urban for All Urban Consumers (All Items) between the calendar year ending on December 31, 2017, and the calendar year immediately preceding the fiscal year for which the adjustment is made.

The Department shall, on or before March 1 of each year, publish the adjusted amounts for the next fiscal year on its Internet website or otherwise make that information available to short-term lessors.

3. A short-term lessor who disseminates an advertisement in the State of Nevada that contains a rate for the lease of a passenger car shall include in the advertisement a clearly readable statement of the charge for a waiver of damages and a statement that the waiver is optional.

4. A short-term lessor shall not engage in any unfair, deceptive or coercive conduct to induce a short-term lessee to purchase a waiver of damages, optional insurance or any other optional good or service, including, but not limited to, refusing to honor the lessee's reservation, limiting the availability of cars, requiring a deposit or debiting or blocking the lessee's credit card account for a sum equivalent to a deposit if the lessee declines to purchase a waiver, optional insurance or any other optional good or service.

Sec. 2. This act becomes effective on July 1, 2019.

Senator Cancela moved the adoption of the amendment.

Remarks by Senator Cancela.

Amendment No. 657 makes one change to Assembly Bill No. 365. The amendment provides for both the amount of the charge of a waiver of damages and the threshold amount of the manufacturer's suggested retail price of a vehicle to be adjusted each fiscal year starting on July 1, 2021, in an amount calculated based on the same Consumer Price Index for the preceding year.

Amendment adopted.

Bill ordered reprinted, re-engrossed and to third reading.

UNFINISHED BUSINESS
SIGNING OF BILLS AND RESOLUTIONS

There being no objections, the President and Secretary signed Senate Bill No. 117; Senate Concurrent Resolution No. 5; Assembly Bills Nos. 8, 16, 61, 131, 133, 156, 228, 266, 342, 418, 461, 464, 480, 481, 482.

GUESTS EXTENDED PRIVILEGE OF SENATE FLOOR

On request of Senator Cannizzaro, the privilege of the floor of the Senate Chamber for this day was extended to Tom Bird.

On request of Senator Denis, the privilege of the floor of the Senate Chamber for this day was extended to the students of Tony Alamo Elementary School: Abrielle Aldrich, Chase Altman, Neve Bailey, Tanner Baker, Ella Beck, Aliyah Bergeron, Ethan Blanchard, Levi Bynan, Nora Carlsen, Lola Collier, Karis Custer, Anthony Dorsz, Cole Doayne, Heaven Dumay, Lakshay Eppan, Vincent Federico, Ocean Ford, Brandi Harriel, Madison Hoffman, Yolana Huff, Caden Ivory, Syrenna Jolly, Shylah Jordan, Natalia Juarez, Brooke Kosnitzky, Lily Kosnitzky, Nicolette Kvetan, Christian Laines, Harrison Larson, Amelia Lewis, Xingyue Long, Zachary Lovering, Ryker McMahan, Christian Meadows, Alexander Miller, Avery Moore, Colter Musburger, Lucy Paul, Roxy Pazos, Ava Phillips, Robert Powell, Darian Ringler, Thadus Roberts, Ahlia Smith, Ezra Smith, Danica Souder, Brinkley

Terry, Zaylee Villena, Brooke Williams, Isabella Ybarra, Laila Yono, Entong Zhang and Dorothy Zhao.

On request of Senator Hansen, the privilege of the floor of the Senate Chamber for this day was extended to Nevin Armstrong and Donna Armstrong.

On request of Senator Settlemeyer, the privilege of the floor of the Senate Chamber for this day was extended to Vincent Lewis.

Senator Cannizzaro moved that the Senate adjourn until Monday, May 13, 2019, at 11:00 a.m.

Motion carried.

Senate adjourned at 12:48 p.m.

Approved:

KATE MARSHALL
President of the Senate

Attest: CLAIRE J. CLIFT
Secretary of the Senate